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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors

UCPB Leasing and Finance Corporation

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank)
14th Floor, UCPE Building

T80T Makati Avenue, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have gudited the financial statements of UCPB Leasing and Finance Corporation

(the Company), which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017
and 20186, and the statements of comprehensive income, staterments of changes in equity and
statemnents of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including & summary of significant accounting policies,

In gur opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
paosition of the Company as at Decembar 31, 2017 and 2018, and its financial performance and
its cash fiows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards {PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Staternents section of our report. We are independant of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to MNote 1 to the financial statements, which discusses the Supreme Court
(SC) decision an the ownership of United Coconut Planters Bank, the Parent Bank, and the
Executive Orders (EOs) no. 175 and 180 issued by the former Fresident of the Republic of the
Philippines (ROP), Benigno 8. Aguing IIl, regarding the inventory, reconveyance, utilization and
privatization of coco levy assets. The EOs reference the SC decision that a majority of tha
sequestered shares of stock of the Parent Bank, was paid from the Coconut Consumers
Stabilization Fund, is owned by the ROP for the benefit of the coconut farmers, thus making it a
part of the coco levy assets. It also discusses that the recapitalization plan of the Parent Bank
by way of privatization was approved by former President of the ROP.

On June 30, 2015, the SC issued a temporary restraining order (TRO) enjoining the
implementation of the EOs (Confederation of Coconut Farmers Organizations of the Philippines
vs. His Excellency President Benigno S. Aquinc IIl, et al., G.R. No. 217965). On August 8,
2017, the SC fifted the TRO.

Pursuant to EQ 178 and as instructed by the Department of Finance and Presidential
Commission on Good Governance, on November 3, 2017, the Parent Bank cancelled the
533,641,234 shares, the so-called "UCPB Farmers' Shares” and "Cojuangco Option Shares®,
rapresanting the 35.84% of the Parent Bank's outstanding capital stock and issued in favor of
the ROP,

In addition, on December 15, 2017, the Parent Bank cancelled the 587,500,000 shares, which
were owned by the CIIF companies, representing the 39.42% of the Parent Bank's cutstanding
capital and issued in favor of the ROP.

With these developments and resolution on tha ownership of certain sequestered shares of the
Parent Bank, the BOD and the management believe that, as at December 31, 2017 and 2018,
it is reasonable to maintain the status quo and continue with its normal business operations.
Qwr opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemants
in accordance with FFRS, and for such internal control a8 management determines is
necassary o enable the preparation of financial statemants that are free from material
misstaternant, whether duea to fraud ar emor

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue &s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to
liquidate the Company or o cease operations, or has no realistic siternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemnance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.
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Audftors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auvditors’ repaort that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with PSA will always detect a
materiai misstatarmneant whan it axists. Misstatements can arise from frawd or amor and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the aconomic decisions of usars taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professicnal skeplicism throughout the audit We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, wheather
due to fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, infentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contral.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poficies used and the reasonableness of
@ccounting estimates and related disciosures made by managemeant.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to evenis or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
ara required to draw attention in gur auditors’ report to the related disclesures in the
financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion, Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbiained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concam.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant
deficiencies in inteérnal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Owr audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, The supplementary information for the year ended December 31,
2017 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Nate 22 o the financial
statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not & required part of the
basic financial statements preparad in accordance with PFRS. Such supplamentary
information is the responsibility of management. The supplamantary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our apinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial staterments
takan as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Ra . Nafiola
Pa

CPA Reg. No. 0080741
TIN 109-228-427
PTR No. BE18015, January 3, 2018, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No, 0305-AR-3 (until May 18, 2018)
Firm - Mo. 0002-FR-5 (until Mar. 26, 2021)
BIR AN 0B-D02511-18-2018 (until Jan. 25, 2021)
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2018)

April 10, 2018
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The Board of Directors
UCPE Leasing and Finance Corporation
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank)

14th Floor, UCPB Building
7907 Makati Avenua, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of UCPB Leasing and Finance Corporation
(the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2017, on which we have rendared the

attached report dated April 10, 2018.
In compliance with the Securities Regulation Code Rule B8, as amended, we are stating that

the Company has only ene stockholder owning 100 or more shares of the Company & capital
stock as of December 31, 2017 as disciesed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

PUNONGEAYAN & ARAULLO
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UCPB LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION
A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bamk)
STATEMENTS OF FINAMCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Bobey
ASSETS g ey e
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7 P 0,3 P 345,990,009
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES — Met g 3929313 3504 843 575
INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - Net L] 5,641,224 5,098,713
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - MNet 1% L3, 583 G035 422
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - Bet 17 29,544,052 47,661 455
OTHER ASSETS - Met i 87,523,343 49 673,206
TOTAL ASSETS r awl P 3813 410
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BILLS PAYABLE 12 P 1,316,616,157 P 1,674,587,062
ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 13 21,810,350 101 05,002
DEPOSIT OM LEASE CONTRACTS L] 253,271,041 295,380,304
INCOME TAX PAYABLE = 2 338,075

Total Liahilities 1851 697 548 207151 443
CAPITAL STOCK 1 775,000,000 775,000,000
REVALUATION RESERVES ] 490,500 116,000
RETAINED EARNINGS 14 226,501,193 966,034,967

Tortal Equity 1,601,991,693 1,741 950,967
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 3451689 241 P 3E13 302 410

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENLE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
Sce Notes to Financial SearempbbfGE TAXPAYERS ASSISTANGE DIVIZION

Date | APR %uzﬂm TSIS

REGISTERED
MA. GRACIAAURORAL, CASTILLD




WM MMM M MMMNME EEEYEY Y EMYNI SN UYEB DB

LICPB LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiaty of United Coconut Planters Baok)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

(Amounts in Phelippine Pesos)
HMotes 2017 2016

REVEMUES
Interest income B P 205,245 955 P 224,169,595
Leasing income B T2,602,112 B2.071,435
Equity share in net eamings of » subsidiary ] 168,011 182,677
278,017,078 306425 TOT
INTEREST EXFPEMSE 12 74,599,501 o ek BT
NET INTEREST AND LEASING INCOME 203,617,577 208,657,837
OTHER INCOME - Net 15 96,078,674 146,064,418
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 15 188,710,132 252613, 747
FROFIT BEFORE TAX 110,986,119 104,128,458
TAX EXPEMNSE 17 51319 893 49,307 803
NET PROFIT 59,666,226 4,820,655

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO38)

o

374,500 | 69,000 4

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P &0, 040, 726 P 34,751,655

See Notes fo Financial Seatemenis,

BUREAL OF INTERNAL REVE ;qﬁg"l
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
LABGE TAYPAWE UL ACSIETAMCE BIVESION
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UCPE LEASING AND FINANMCE CORPORATION
A Wholly Owaed Subsidrary of Dnfed £ :

STATEMEMNTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
fAmounts in Philippine Pesos)
_Motes 2017 S
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES
Profa befioge tax P 116,986,119 P 104,128 458
Adjusements for
Impairment and credit osses 15 63,856,534 132382 872
Crain oo sale of recervables 14 { 428505473 | 120,807 837 )
rish of foreclosuse 15 i 1429393y | 7,854,797 )
Deprecation and smortizaton 15 I0,B0G, 645 16,548,156
Loss {gain) on sale of sssets scquired 15 12,046,903 { 1421755 )
Eguity share i net earnsngs of @ sobsidiary " { LN T 182,677 )
Ciperating profit before working capital changes 123,758,450 122803 420
Diecrease in loans and receivebles 57,476,271 208 408,745
Increase in other sssers { 2IE8L189) | 14,816,509 §
Dieceesse in accounts payables snd cnbier labilities { 1924652 203,177,078 )
Dreceesss in deposst on lease conraces { 0,110 263 T5924 671 %
Cash generated from operations 138,988,457 AT 200508
Caib paid for come s [ MESET) [ 53,347 B&D |
Net Cash Generated From (Used in) Opezating Activitics 00,1288 | 26,054,961 |
CASH FLOWE FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposs] of investment properties 10 7,803,675 16,128,070
Proceeds frcan dispesal of other propesties acquired 11 5,805,000 8,718,000
Acquuitions of property and eqaipment 11 { L5149y | 2544683 )
Net Cash From Investing Activities 2,184,766 i a7
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCIMNG ACTIVITIES 1]
Repayenents of blls payshle [ Z1E3 898430 | 15120M1,025 )
Proceeds from availments of bills payable —LESERNIS 1493614840
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities { ATIN0008) 418,456,285 )
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { 55,6733y | 422 616,850 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 345, 550, D0 T68 606 868
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR P___90NG6EE P 45390009

Notes i Financial Stateopenil) ERNAL HEVENUE
Ser to REAL OF W:*L ?EHE REVEN

LARGE TAX
LARGE TAXPRYERS AS

Date APR 20) E]ﬂ TSIS
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UCPB LEASING AND FINANCE COR PORATION
(A Wholl Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
{Amounts in Philippines Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
L1 (eperal Information

UCPE Leasing and Finance Corporation (the Company) is 2 domestic corporation
incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on January 2, 1989 as a finance company under Republic Act (R.A.)
MNo. B556, The f‘m Compamy At gI"J‘FFE {the Financing Company Act). The Company
is presently engaged in providing services such as lease financing, check discounting and

trade receivable financing,

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank (UCPB or
the Parent Bank), 2 universal bank incorporated and demiciled in the Philippines
ofganized to provide expanded commercial banking services such as deposit products,
loans and trade finance, domestic and foreign fund transfers, treasury, foreign exchange
investment banking and trust services.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company holds 100% ownership interest in

Unired Foreign Exchange Corporation (UFEC), a domestic company primarily engaged in
dealing of foreign currencies and fAnancial instraments.

In September 2010, the Monetary Board of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF)

approved the Company's application to engage in quasi-banking functions. In
January 2012, however, the Company decided to cancel its quasi-banking license and the

BSP approved its immediate revocation on Apdl 26, 2012,

On August 18, 2017, the SEC approved the change in the registered principal office of the
Company from 14* Floor, UCPB Building, 7907 Makat Avenue, Makat City to 6* Floor,
UCPB Corporate Offices, 7907 Makat Avenue, Makati City. The change is yet to be
approved by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR).

12  Sratus of Operations

A portion of the sequestered shares of the ultimate parent bank was the subject of legal
cases on which the Supreme Court (SC) has issued its final decision in 2012 whereby such

shares are declared conclusively owned by the Republic of the Philippines (ROF) for the
benefit of the coconutr farmers.

On March 18, 2015, then President Benigno 5. Aquino 1 of the ROP issued Exgn:u:ive
Order (EQ) No. 179, Prosiding the Administrative Gidelines for the I:ﬂm% and Privatization of

Coco Lesy Assets, and EO No. 180, Prossding the m:ﬁmymk and
Utilization of Caco Lesy Asets for the Benefit of the Cpconst Fitbulerd wEH oot b,

Coconut Industry, and Far Other Purposes, collectiv

Date APR .‘{U 2018
REGI ST ERED

MA, GRACIAAURORAL, CASTILLD
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The EOs mandate the inventory, reconveyance, utilization and pavatzaton of coco levy
assets to ensure that the Coco Levy Fund and Coco Levy Assets will only be unhzed for
the benefit of the coconut farmers and the Philippine coconut industry. The EOs define
coco levy funds as all funds created or sourced from the Coconut Levy imposed by the
government, including the Coconut Industry Investment Fund (CIIF) and the Coconut
Consumers Stabihizaton Fund (CCSF). The Uldmate Parent Bank was appointed
administrator of the CIIF under Presidential Decree Mo, 1468, 5. 1978 “Revised Coconut
Industry Code”. Coco levy assets, meanwhile, refer to the money, assets or properties,
whether real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever situated, arising from or
otherwise funded by or acquired 'I:F:u:nugh the use or by means of any of the coco levy
funds, directly or indirectly, including but not limited to, shares, dghts and interests,
whether vested, contingent, expectant, choate or inchoate, and any all fraits, income,
interest or profits derved from these assets including those acquired in exchange or
substtution thereof. The EOs reference the SC decision that a majority of the sequestered
shares of stock of the Uldimate Parent Bank, which was paid from the CCSF, and the CIIF
companies, are owned by the ROP for the benefit of the coconut farmers, thus making it a
part of the coco levy assets.

Also, on March 18, 2015, the Office of the President iPPm"i'td the recapitalization of the
Ultzmate Parent Bank, by way of pavatization, to be implemented by & Committee
composed of representatives from the Governance Commission for Government Cwned
of Controlled Corporations, Philippine Dieposit Insurance Corpotation (PDIC),
Presidential Commission on Good Government, Privadzaton and Management Office
and UCPB.

On June 30, 2015, the SC issued a temporary restraining order (TRO) enjoining the
implementaton of the EOs (Confederaton of Coconut Farmers Organizations of the
Philippines vs. His Excellency President Benigno S. Aquino I11, et. al., GR.

MNo. 217965). On August 8, 2017, the Supreme Court lifted the TRO.

Pursuant to EO 179 and as instructed by the Department of Finance and Presidential
Commission on Good Governance, on Movember 3, 2017, the Parent Bank cancelled and
issued the 533,641,234 shares, which were declared as the so-called "UCPB Farmers’
Shares” and “Cojuangeo Option Shares”, represennng the 35.64% of the Parent Bank's
outstanding capital stock in favor of the ROP based on the SC decisions in COCOFED
vs. Republic of the Philippines (G.R. No, 177857-38 and G.R- No. 178193) and
Cojuangeo vs, Republic of the Philippines (G.R. No. 180705) and Sandiganbayan

Pardal Summary Judgment in Republic of the Philippines vs. Cojuangeo, et al,

{(Civil Case No. 0033-A).

In addition, on December 19, 2017, the Parent Bank cancelled and issued the 387,500,000
shares representing the 39.42% of the Parent Bank's outstanding capital stock in favor of
the ROP based on the SC and the Sandiganbayan Partial Summary Judgment in Republic
of the Philippines vs. Cojuango, et al. (Civil Case No. 0033-F), which declared, AmMOng
others, the CIIF companies, the 14 Holding Companies, and the converted SMC shares to
be “owned by the Government to be used only for the benefit of all coconur farmers and
for the development of the coconut industry, and ordered reconveyed to the
Government™,

With these developments and resolution on the ownership of certain sequestered shares of
the Parent Bank, the BOD and the management believe that, as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, it is reasonable to maintain the status quo and continue with its normal business

operatons.
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13 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017
(including the comparative financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016) were authonzed for issue by the Company's BOD on Apsil 10, 2018,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(8

(&)

(&)

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporong Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and approved by the Philippine Board
of Accountancy.

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement
bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Pregentation of Fimancial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (FAS) 1, Presensation of Financial S tatements. The Company presents all items
of income, expense and other comprehensive income in & single statement of
comprehensive income.

The Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the
information in the statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
pesiod. The related notes to the third statement of financial position are not
required to be disclosed.

Functional and Presentation Carrency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Company's
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts,
except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using its
tunctional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the pHmMAry economic
environment in which the Company operates.



2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(a)  Effective in 2017 that are Relevant fo the Company

(&)

The Company adopted for the first time the following amendments to PFRS, which
are mandatonly effective for annual peniods beginning on or after january 1, 2017:

PAS 7 (Amendments) t Statement of Cash Flows —
Dhsclosure Initatve
PAS 12 (Amendments) :  Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred

Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
Dhscussed below are the relevant information about these amendments.

{1}  PAST (Amendments), Statemens of Cask Flows — Disclosare Inittattve.
The amendments are designed to improve the quality of information provided
to users of financial statements about changes in an entty's debt and related
cash flows (and non-cash changes). They require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users to evaluate changes in babilities arising from
financing activities. An entity applies its judgment when determining the exact
form and content of the disclosures needed to satisfy this requiremnent.
Muoreover, they suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be necessary
in order to satisfy the above requirement, including: (a) changes in liabilities
arising from Anancing activities caused by changes in financing cash flows,
foreign exchange rates or fair values, or obtaining or losing contral of
subsidiaries or other businesses; and, (b) a reconciliation of the opening and
closing balances of liabilities ansing from financing activities in the statement
of financial positon including those changes identified immediately above.

Management has applied these amendments in the current year and has not
disclosed comparative figures as allowed by the transitional provisions. A
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising
from financing activities, which includes both cash changes are presented in
Not= 21.

(i) PAS 12 (Amendments), Jacme Taser — Recogmition of Deferred Tase ALsets for
Unrealized Losser. The focus of the amendments is to clarfy how to account
for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value,
particulacly where changes in the market interest rate decrease the fair value of
a debt instrument below cost. The amendments provide guidance in the
following areas where diversity in practice previously existed: (a) existence of a
deductble temporary difference; (b) recovering an asset for more than its

_carrying amount; (c) probable future taxable profit against which deductible
temporary differences are assessed for utlization; and, {d) combined versus
separate assessment of deferred tax asset recognition for each deductible
temporary difference. The application of these amendments had no impact on
the Company's financial statements.

Eiffestive in 2017 but wot Relevant 12 the Company

The only improvement to existing standards for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017, is the Annual Improvements to PFRS (2014-2016 Cyele) -
PERS 12, Disclossere of Interest in Other Entities, which is not relevant to the Company.



(&)

Effective Subsequent to 2017 bat not Adepted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments, interpretations and anoual improvements to
existing standards effectve for annual periods subsequent to 2017, which are
adopted by the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant
profouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements:

0

(i}

PAS 40 (Amendments), Imvestment Property — Reclassification to and from investment
property (effective from January 1, 2018). The amendment states that an entity
shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only
when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definiton of investment property. A change in
management's intentions for the use of 2 property by itself does not constitute
evidence of a change in use. The amendment provided a non-exhaustve list of
examples constituting ¢ in use.

PERS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (effective from January 1, 2018). This new
standard on Anancial inscruments will replace PAS 39, Finamdal Instraments:
Recogmition and Meanmement, and PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). This
standard contains, among others, the following:

» three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments;

* an expected credit loss model in determining impairment of all financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
which generally depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit nisk since initial recognition of a financial asset; and,

* anew model on hedge accountng that provides significant improvements
prncipally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial
and non-financial ask exposures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PFRS 9 (2(14),
a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the asset is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect the contractual cash fows that represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the prncipal outstanding. Moreover, a Bnancial asset is
classified and subsequently measured ar fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it meets the SPPI criterion and is held in
2 business model whose objective i1s achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets. All other financial assets are
measured at FVTPL.

In addinon, PFRS 9 (2014) allows endies to make an irrevocable election 1o
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that is not
held for trading in other comprehensive income,
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The accounting for embedded derivatives in host conteacts that are financial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not
they are closely related, and, in most arrangements, does not require separation
from the host contract.

For habilines, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded dedvatives, The amendment also requires changes
in the fair value of an entty's own debt instruments caused by changes in its
own credit quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather
than in profit or loss.

Based on an assessment of the Company’s financial assets and financial
habilities as at December 31, 2017, which has been imited to the facts and
circumstances existing at that date, management has identified the following
areas that are expected to be most impacted by the application of PFRS 9
(2014);

* Un classificaion and measurement of the Company’s financial assets,
management holds most financial assets to hold and collect the
associated cash flows and is currently assessing the underlying types of
cash flows to classify financial assets correctly. Management expects the
majority of loans and receivables to continue to be accounted for at
amortized cost.

* For loans and receivables, the Company expects the application expected
credit losses as these financial assets will result in higher impairment loss
than under PAS 39.

* Most of the financial liabilities of the Company are measured at amortized
cost. Upon applicanon of PFRS 9 (2014), management has assessed that
the amortized cost classification for most of the financial liabilities will be
retaned.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Statements, and

PAS 28 (Amendments), Investments tn Associates and Joins 1entures — Sale or
Contribution of Assetr between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture
(effective date deferred indefinitely). The amendments to PFRS 10 require
full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains or losses asising
on the sale or contobution of assets that constitute a business as defined in
PFRS 3, Business Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (Le., to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interests in an associate or joint venture)
only applies to those sale of contribution of assets that do not constitute a
business. Corresponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect
these changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when
determining whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a business,
an entity shall consider whether the sale or contmbution of those assets is
part of multiple arrangements that should be accounted for as a single
fransaction.



(i)

(v)

(vi)

.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from January 1, 2018).
This standard will replace PAS 18, Revenwe, and PAS 11, Construction Comtrazty,
the related Interpretations on revenue recognition: Intemational Financial
Reporung Interpretanons Committee (IFRIC) 13, Curtomer Loyalty Programmes,
IFRIC 15, Agreement for the Constraction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Trangers of
Asets from Castopmers and Standing Interpretations Committee 31, Repemse —
Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. This new standard establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recopgnize revenue and
how much revenue to recognize. The core princdple in the said framework is
for an enoty to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or

SCIVICES.

Based on an assessment of the Company’s revenue streams as at December 31,
2017, which has been limited to the facts and circumstances existing at that
date, management determined that its significant sources of revenues pertain to
the interest income, leasing income and service charges and penalties. Except
for mnterest and leasing income, management has initally assessed that its
revenues are covered by PFRS 15.

PFRS 9 (Amendments), Finangal Instruments — Prepayment Features with Negative
Comppensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments clarify that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial
mnstruments may stll qualify under the SPPI test. As such, the financial assets
containing prepayment features with negative compensation may sall be
classified at amortized cost or at FVTOCL Management is currently assessing
the impact of these amendments on the Company’s financial statements.

PFRS 16, Leases (effective from January 1, 2019). The new standard will
eventually replace PAS 17, Learer.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases “on-balance sheet” by
recognizing a “rght-of-use™ asset and a lease liability. The lease Lability is
initially measured as the present value of future lease payments. For this
purpose, lease payments include fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease
elements, amounts due under residual value guarantees, certain types of
contingent payments and amounts due during optional periods to the extent
that extension is reasonably certain. In subsequent periods, the “rght-of-
use’ asset is accounted for similarly to a purchased asset subject to
depreciation or amorctization. The lease Hability is accounted for similar to a
financial liability using the effective interest method. However, the new
standard provides important reliefs or exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. If these exemptions are used, the accounting is
similar to operating lease accounting under PAS 17 where lease payments are
recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term or another
systematic basis (if more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefir).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. In particular, the
distinction berween finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions
of each type of lease, and the supporting indicarors of a finance lease, are
substantially the same as PAS 17's. The basic accounting mechanics are also
stmilar, but with some different or more explicit puidance in few areas.
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These include vanable payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the
treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard on the
Company’s financial statements.

{vil) IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Incomre Taoe Treatments (effective from January 1,
2019). The interpretation provides clarification on the determination of
taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core prnciple of
the interpretation requires the Company to consider the probability of the tax
treatment being accepted by the taxation authonity. When it is probable that
the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the taxable profit, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on the
basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Company has to use the
most likely amount or the expected value, d:p:l:u;hng on the surrounding
circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified Jmmnduu:l;r above.
Management is currently assessing the impact of this new interpretation in its
Bnancial statements,

(viti) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle. Among the improvements,
the following amendments are relevant to the Company but had no material
impact on the Company's financial statements as these amendments merely
clarify existing requirements:

* PAS 12 (Amendments), Income taxes — Tae Comseguences of Dividends, The
amendments clanfy that all income tax consequence of dividend
payments should be recognized in profit or loss.

¢  PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing costy — Elmbelity for Capitalization. The
amendments clanify that any specific borrowing which remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
purpose, such borrowing will then form part of the entity’s general
borrowings when calculating the capitalization rate for capitalization
purposes.

2.3 Separate Financial Statements and Iavestment in a Subsidiary

These financial statements are prepared as the Company's separate financial statements.
As allowed under existing financial reporting standards, the Company has not presented
consolidated financial staternents because it is itself a wholly owned subsidiary of UCPB,
which presents consolidated financial statements available for public use that comply
with PFRS. Moreover, the Company's debt or equity secunties are not traded in
organized financial market and the Company is not in the process of filing its financial
statements with securities commissions or other regulatory organization for the purpose
of 1ssmng any class of instruments in an organized financial market.

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls
an ennty when (i) it has power over the entity; (i) it is exposed, or has oghts to, vagable
returns from its involvement with the entity; and, (iii) it has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity,. The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an entity if facts and circumnstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of controls indicated above.
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The Company’s investment in a subsidiary is accounted for in these separate financial
statements using the equty method. Under the equity method, all subsequent changes to
the ownership interest in the equity of the subsidiary are recognized in the Company’s
catrying amount of the investment. Changes resulting from the profit or loss generated and
the changes in other comprehensive income by the subsidiary is credited or charged against
the Equity Share in Net Earnings of a Subsidiary and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
account in the statements of comprehensive income.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in a
subsidiary will not be recovered (see Note 2.13).

24 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an
instrument 1s considered as an equity instrument if it is non-dedvative and meets the
defininion of equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32, Fimancia/
Instruments: Presentation. All other non-denivative financial instruments are treated as debt
INStruments.

Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are
classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables,
held-to-marurity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.
Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their settlement date.
All inancial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are
initally recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs are recognized in profit or

loss.
Currently, the financial asset category relevant to the Company is loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-detvative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivables,

The Company’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Loans and Receivables and Refundable deposits under
Other Assets account in the statement of financial position. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
nterest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there is
objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carmied at cost has
been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the financial
asset's onginal effective interest rate or current effectve interest rate determined under
the contract if the loan has a varable interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized

{such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized
impairment loss 1s reversed by adjusang the allowance account. The reversal shall not
result in & carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognized at the date of the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the profit or loss.

All income and expenses, exclading impairment losses, relating to financial assets that are
recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Interest Income or Interest Expense
account in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses on loans and
receivables are recorded as part of Other Operating Expenses in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets is measured.

The financial assets (or where applicable, a past of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantally all the rsks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and
an associated hability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially
all the nsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
contnues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized botrowing
for the proceeds received.

2.5 Property and Equipment

All items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attmbutable costs of hnng;u:g
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expendirures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are charged to expense as incurred.
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Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straighe-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvernents are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets of
five vears or the terms of the lease, whichever is shorter.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.13).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation and amortizadon of
property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting penod.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated deprediation,
amortization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year the item is derecognized.

26 [Inovesiment Properties

Investment properties represent properties held either to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

The Company measures investment properties, which include land and building acquired
by the Company from defaulting bormowers, under the cost model. The cost of an
investment property compmses its purchase price and directly attrbutable costs incurred.
Cost is initially recognized at fair value of the investment propertes unless: (1) the
exchange transaction lacks commerctal substance; or, (i) neither the fair value of the asset
received nor the asset given up can be reliably measured. The difference between the fair
value of the asset received, 25 determined by professional appraisers, and the carrying
amount of the loan settled through foreclosure is recognized a5 Gain or loss on
foreclosure under the Other Income account in the statement of comprehensive income.
Investment properties, except land, are depreciated using the straight line basis over the
esumated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to ten years,

Lhirect operating expenses, such as repairs and maintenance and real estate taxes are

normally charged against current operations in the year in which these costs are incurred.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immedsately to its recoverable amouat if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.13).

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
on the retirement or disposal of investment properties is recognized as Gain or loss on
sale of assets acquired under the Other Income account in the year of retirement or
disposal.



2.7  Other Propertics Acquired

Other properties acquired inclode chartel acquired in sertlement of loan receivables. These
are stated at cost, which is the fair value at recognition date, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment in value.

The Company applies the cost model in accounting for other properties acquired.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of three to
five years. The estimated useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically
to ensure that the period and the method of depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from items of other properties acquired.

The carrying values of other properties acquired are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If
such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts (see Note 2.13).

2.8 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include bills payable, deposit an lease contracts and accounts
payables and other liabilities (except tax-related babilities) are recognized when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related
charges incurred on 2 financial liability are recognized as an expense in profit ot loss as
part of Interest Expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

Bills payable are raised to support the long-term funding of operations. Finance charpes,
inclading premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are
added to the carrying amount of the instrument 1o the extent that these are not settled in
the pericd in which they arise.

Accounts payable and other liabilities are recognized initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities
beyond one year, less settlement payments.

Financial lisbilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only when
the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial hability derecognized and the
consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss,

2.9 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial hability, is reported in the statement of financial
position when the Company currently has legally enforceable right to set-off the

1zed amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultanecusly. The right of set-off must be available at the end of
the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on a future event. It must also be
enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of
insolvency or bankruptey; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all
counterparties to the financial instraments.



210 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligatons will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting pedod,
including the fsks and uncertainties associated with the present obligadon. Where there
are 3 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be required in
settlement 1s determined by considering the class of obligatons as a2 whole. When ume
value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values
using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the dsks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the

current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the
recognition cotena of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recopnized
in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Company can
be virmally certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized
as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

211 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by reference to the fair
value of consideration received or receivable by the Company for services rendered,
excluding VAT.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be relably measured; it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company; and, the costs incurred
or to be incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition
coteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(@)  Imterest and Leasing Income — Interest and leasing income are recognized in profit or
loss for all instruments measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective nterest method is 2 method of calculadng the amortized cost of a
fnancial asset or a financial liability and allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant peniod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument o1, when approprate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial kability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering all eontractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider
future credit losses.
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The calculation inclades all fees and points paid or received betwesn parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

The interest income on finance lease receivables is allocated over the lease term on a
systematic and ratonal basis. The recognition of interest income on finance lease is
based on a pattern reflecting a constant penodic rate of return on the Company's net
investment in the finance lease. Lease payments relating to the penod, excluding
costs for services, are applied against the gross investment in the lease to reduce
both the poncipal and the uneamed finance income.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been wrtten down as
a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of mterest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measutng the impairment
loss.

Pemalties and Service Fees — Revenues are recognized only upon collection or accrued
where there is reasonable degree of certainty as to its mllﬂ:r.nbi]itf.

Gatn (Loss) om Foreclosures — Gain (loss) on foreclosed assets is recognized upon
derecognition of existing receivables through foreclosure of assets used as collateral
and is determined as the difference between the fair value of the foreclosed asset
and the net carrying amount of the receivable settled.

Gaini (Lass) on Sale of Assets Aegudred — Gain (Joss) on sale of assets acquired anses
from the disposals of investment propertdes and other properties acquired.
Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets is
transferred to the buyer and when the collectability of the entire sales proce is
reasonably assured.

Gain (Lass) on Sak of Receivables — Gain (loss) on sale of receivables is recognized
upon sale of loans and recervables, without recourse, wherein the selling price is
greater (less) than the carrying amount of loans and receivables sold.

Miscellaneows Income — Income from sale of services is recognized upon rendenng of
the service.

Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income upon
utilization of the resources and/ or services or at the date they are incurred. All finance
costs are reported on an accrual basis, excepr capitalized borrowing costs which are
included as part of the cost of the related qualifying asset, if any (see Note 2.14).

212 Leases

The Company accounts for its leases as follows:

(@) Corspary as Lersee

Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the rsks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
(net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Associated costs, such as repairs and
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.



() Company as Lessor

Leases wherein the Company substantially ransfers to the lessee all fisks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Company’s net investment in the
lease. Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant
peniodic rate of return on the Company's net investment outstanding in respect of the
finance lease.

The Company determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
armngement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a fght to use the asset.

2.13 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company's investment in a subsidiary, property and equipment, investment properties
and other non-Anancial assets are subject to impairment testing whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets may not be

recoverable

Fort purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are
tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-penerating unit level.

Impairment loss 1s recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use,
management estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines the suitable interest tate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the
Company's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset
enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit
and reflect management's assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-
specific risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash
generating unit's recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

2.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly artdbutable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (ie., an asset that takes 2
substantial penod of ome to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of
cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures
for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when
substantially all such activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization,



215 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss compnses the sum of deferred tax and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or kabilides compnise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authonnes relating to the current or poor reporting perod, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of the repornng period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal penods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as 2 component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the Lability method, on temporary differences at the
end of each reporting period berween the tax base of assets and liabilines and their
carrying amounts for Anancial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptions, deferred tax habilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductble temporary differences can
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
penod and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that futere taxable
profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the hability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assers is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utlized.

The measurement of deferred tax hahilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
p:ti::ld to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and hiabilities. Most r.']ung:s
in deferred tax assers or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit
of loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deeferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

215 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Relared party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Company and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in mnluug financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermedianies, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Company; (b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in
the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company
and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relatnonship and not merely on the legal form.

2.17 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Revaluation reserves represent the accumulated share in other comprehensive income of a
subsidiary.

Retained earnings represent all current and prior period results of operations as reported in
the profit or loss section of the statement of comprehensive income, reduced by the
amounts of dimdends declared, if any.

2.18 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Company’s
financial posinon at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when marerial to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
fianagement to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of fumure
events that are believed to be reasonable under the crcumstances. Actual results may
ultimately differ from these estimates.

4.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

fa) Distinction Between Investement Properties and Owner-managed Properties

The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In
making its judgment, the Company considers whether the property penerates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but also
to other assers used in the production or supply process.
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(B} Distimetion Between Operating and Finance Leases

(4

The Company has entered into vanous lease agreements. Critical judgment was
excrcised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating
or a finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make
the right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of assets and
Habilities.

Cilassification of Acqueired Propertier

The Company classifies its acquired properties as Property and equipment under
Other Assets account if used in operations, as Other properties acquired under
Other Assets account if the Company expects that the properties will be recovered
principally through sale mther than continuing use of the asset, as Investment
Properties if held for currently undetermined future use and is regarded as held for

capital appreciation.

Recognition of Provisiens and Continpencer

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
cuntlngmﬂﬁ Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed

in Note 2.10 and disclosures on relevant provisions and contingendies are presented
mn Note 20.

3.2 Key Sowurces of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have significant risks of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next reportng penod:

fa) Impairment of Loans and Recetvabies

The Company reviews its loans and receivables portfolio to assess impairment at least
on an anoual basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognized
in profit or loss, the Company makes judgment as to whether there is any chservable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the portfolio before the decrease can be identified with an individual item in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in a group, or
national or local economic conditions that correlates with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss expenience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and tming of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

The carrying value of loans and receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 8.
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{b) Esttmration of Useful Lives of Investoment Properties and Other Asgets

&)

)

The Company esimates the useful lives of investment properties and property and
equipment based on the penod over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimated useful lives of investment properties and other assets are reviewed
penodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limirs
on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of investment properties and other assets are analyzed

in Notes 10 and 11, respectively. Based on management's assessment as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, there is no change in estimated useful lives of those
assets during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in
estimates brought about by chanpges in factors mentoned above,

Farr Valwe Measuressents of Imvestment Properties and Other Properties Acqutred

The Company's investment properties and other properties acquired consist of
parcels of land and buildings and machinenies and other equipment which are held
for capital appreciation ot held under operating lease agreements, and are measured
using the cost model The estimated fair values of investment properties and other
properties acquired as disclosed in Note 6.3 are determined on the basis of
appraisals conducted by in-house and independent professional appraisers applying
the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed therein,

For investment properties with appraisal condueted priot to the end of the current
reporting period, management determines whether there are significant
circumstances during the intervening period that may require adjustments or
changes in the disclosure of fair value of those properties.

A significant change in key inputs and sources of informaton used in the
determination of the fair value disclosed for those assets may result in an
adjustment in the carrying amount of the assets reported in the financial statements
if their fair value will indicate evidence of impairment.

Derermination of Realizable AAmount of Deferred Tase Assets

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized as ar
December 31, 2017 and 2016 will be fully utilized in the coming years. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in Note 17.



fe)  Impairment of Now-fimancial Asiets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
of a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest
rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainty relates
to assumptions about future cperating results and the determination of a suitable
discount rate (see Note 2.13). Though management believes that the assumptions
used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial statements are
appropriate and reasonable, significant chanpes in those assumptions may materially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could
have a material adverse effect on the results of operatons.

Impairment losses recognized on Investment Properties and Other Assets are
discussed in Notes 10 and 11, respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to a varety of financial risks which result from both its
operating, investing and Anancing activities and the business in which it operates.

The Company’s risk management is coordinated with its parent company, in close
cooperanon with the BOD, and focuses on actively secuning the Company’s short to
medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

The Company does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options. The significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed
toy are descobed below and in the 9.u-:|:ud.ing pages.

4.1 Interese Rate Risk

Interest rate nisk anses from the differences between the timing of the rate changes and
the timing of cash flows (repricing risk). At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through its cash and cash
equivalents, loans and receivables and bills payable. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are non-interest beanng.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value, Loans and recervables and bills payable have fixed interest rates throughout their
short term durations and are not sensitive to prevailing market rate fluctuations.

The Company carefully analyzes interest rate risk exposure based on the interest rate
gap of its portfolio of cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables and bills payable.
The focus of the analysis is the impact of changes in interest mates of its interest
sensitive liabilities relative to the fixed interest ate for its loans and receivables. The
Company ensures that its loanable funds are offered to borrowers at a reasonable price
and interest which would give favorable interest margin over the term of the
instruments. In certain cases, the Company will reprice its loans and leases depending
on the agreement with customers and/or market price.
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The interest rate gap analyses as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are presented below.
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4.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty 1o a financial instrument may fail to
meet its contractual obligations to the Company. Credit risk is found in all activities
where success depends on counterparty, issuer or borrower petformance. It arises any
time when the Company funds are extended, committed, invested or otherwise exposed
through actual or implied contractual agreements, whether reflected on or off the
statement of financial position. Credit risk is not limited to the loan portfolio. The
Company uses risk asset acceptance criteria when initially considering a prospect. When
the prospect does not meet these criteria, the Company normally does not further pursue
the account. When the prospect passes the criteria, the Company performs qualitative and
quantitative analyses to determine creditworthiness of the prospect. The qualitative
analysis includes evaluation of the borrower's ownership, management, product,
production/process, industry, security and collateral, suppliers, customers, etc. The
quantitative analysis includes review of past and present financial condition and farre
expectations based on assumptions and projections.

The Company is also required to follow rules and regulations of the BSP on directors,
officers, stockholders and related interests (DOSRI), single borrower’s limit, account
classification, general and specific loan reserve policy and others. With respect to bank
deposits, the Company's BOD approves the banks with which the Company shall deal
with.
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Exparare to Credit Risk

The amount of loans and receivables, net of any allowances for impairment and
unearned discount and interest, cash and cash equivalents and refundable deposits
recorded in the financial statements represent the Company's maximum exposure to
credit nisk without taking into account the value of any collateral obtained.

The Company's financial assets subject to credit risks are categorized under loans
and receivables and are broken down as follows:

_MNotes 2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 7 P 90,316,688 P 345990009
Loans and receivables B 3,149,293,311 3,304,843,575
Refundable deposits 11 779,767 I79.767

E3.240.389.066 PE3651613.351

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company’s loans and receivables as
of December 31.

2017 2016

Individually impaired
Grade 1: Fully and/or partially secured P 491,041,339 P 488,623,148

Grade 2: Unsecured — 247709437 144,532,183
Gross amount 738,750,776 633,155,331
Allowance for impairment (173.183.341) (___179.334 488)
Carrying amount — 965,567,435 __ 453820843
Neither past due nor impaired
Gross amount 2,741,262,551 3,019,839,388
Unearned discount and interest (__157,536,675) (__ 168.816,656)
Carrying amount -2,583,725.876  _2,851.022.732
Total carrying amount E3.149.293.311 P3304843575

As part of Company policy, bank deposits are only maintained with reputable
Bnancial institutions. Cash in banks which are insured by the PDIC up to a
maximum coverage of P0.50 million per depositor per banking institution, as
provided for under R-A. No. 9576, Amendment fo Charter of PDIC, are still subjected to
crect dsk.

Codlateral Held ar Securty and Other Credit Enbancenvents
The Company holds collateral against loans and receivables in the form of mortgage

interests over property. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral

assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not updated, except when a loan is
individually assessed s impaired.
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2017 2016
Against impaired
Chattel mortgage P B453349% P 77376925
Real estate mortgage 46,802,936 18,225,748
Finance lease 268,201,874 294 B44.135
Apgainst neither past due but not impaired
Chattel mortgage 638,877,356 759,446,763
Real estate mortgage 28,223,474 44,506,404
Finance lease _B25.413.926 __ 856,406,406
ELES2,053.015 E2050.806.38]

Comeentrations of Credir Rirk

The Company monitors concentrations of credit rsk by sector. An analysis of
concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown below.

—Cash and Cash Equivalents ___ Loans and Reccivables®

2017 2016 2017 2018
Concentration by secton
Financal insotubons P 90,316,688 P 345000009 P P .
TradingCommercial - i 1,148 391 424 1,00 TRE B3
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doatin.

The Company maintains a general policy of avoiding excessive exposure in any
pm:ulm: sector of the Philippine economy. The Company actively seeks to increase
its exposure in industry sectors which it believes to possess atracove growth
opportunities, Conversely, it actively seeks to reduce its exposure in industry sectors

where growth potential is minimal.

4.3 Ligquidity Risk

Liquidity nsk is the current and prospectve risk to eamings or capital arsing from the

Company’s inability to meet its obligations when they become due without incurning
unacceptable losses. The Company manages this m!{ by widening its money market

customer base, maintaining adequate credit facilities with banks, and following puidelines
set by the BSP on statatory and hquidity reserve policy.
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s financial liabilines (excepr tax-related
liabilities) have contractual maturities which are presented below.
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The contractual maturities reflect the pross cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
vilues of the liabilities at the reporting date.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINAMNCIAL LIABILITIES

5.1 Canying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The carrying amounts and fair values of the catepones of financial assets and financial

liabilities presented in the statements of financial position, at amortized cost, are shown
below.

2017 = A&
Carrying Fair Cagrying Fur
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See Notes 2.4 and 2.8 for the descrdption of the accounting policies for each category of
fnancial instruments. A description of the Company's sk management objectives and
policies for financial instruments is provided in Note 4.
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5.2 Offierting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Company has not set-off financial instruments in 2017 and 2016 and does not have
relevant offsettung arrangements. Currently, financial assets and finaneial liabilities are
settled on 2 gross basis; however, each party of the lease agreement will have the option to
settle such amount on a net basis in the event of default of the other party. As such, the
Company’s lease contract receivables from the lessees, net of deferred leasing income and
allowance for impairment, amounting to P1.03 billion and P1.10 billion as of

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, can be offset by the amount of deposits on
lease contracts amounting to P253.27 million and P293.38 million as of December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectvely (see Note 8). The balance of lease contract receivables net of
deposits on lease contracts amounted to P0.78 billion and P0.80 billion as of

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectvely.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT AND DISCLOSURE
6.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, Farr adve Meassrement, the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring
or non-recurnng basis and those assets and labilines not measured at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into
three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value, The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

*  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identcal assets ar
Labilities that an entity can access at the measurement dare;

*  Level 2: mnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie., as prices) or indirectly
{i.e., denived from prces); and,

®  Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data {unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, 2 market is regarded as active if
quoted prices ate readily and regularly available from an exchange, deales, broker, industry

group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

For financizl assets which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined by
using generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the
current market of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into
account the related credit sk of counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected
cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the instrument.
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When the Company uses valuaton technique, it maximizes the use of observable market
data where it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific estimates. 1f all
significant inputs required to determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the
instrument 15 incladed in Level 2. Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

Management considers that the carrying values of financial assets, such as cash and cash
equivalents, loans and other receivables and refundable deposits, and financial liabilites
such as accounts payables and other liabilities approximates the fair values either because
these financial instruments are short-term in nature or the effect of discounting for those
with maturities of more than one year is not material.

6.2 Financial Insrruments Measured ar Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is
Disclosed

The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilines which are not measured at fair value in the statements of financial
position but for which fair value is disclosed as of December 31.
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Far financial asset with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amounts of these instruments approximate their fair values due to their short
duration.

The fair vahues of the fnancial assets and Anancial liabilities included in Level 3, which are
not traded in an active market, are determined based on the expected cash flows of the
undeslying asset or liability based on the instrument where the significant inpurs required
to determine the fair value of such inscruments are not based on observable market dara.
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6.3 Fair Valpe Measurement of Non-fnancial Assers

The table below shows the Levels within the hierarchy of assets classified as
investment properties and other properties acquired measured at fair value as at
Drecember 31.
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The basis in determining the fair value of the Company's land, and buildings and related
improvements classified as Investment Properties and machineries and othes equipment
classified as Other properties acquired under Other Assets account are based on the
appraisals performed by internal appraisers with appropriate qualifications and recent
expesience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations (sec Notes 10
and 11).

To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraiser in discussion with
the Company's management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the
size, age, and condition of the land and building and improvements, and the comparable
prices in the comresponding property location.

In estimating the fair value of these properties, management takes into account the masket
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest and
best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the Company’s non-financial
asscts indicated above is their current use.

The fair value of these non-financial assets were determined based on the following
approaches;

fa)  Fatr Valse Measwrement for Land

The fair value of land was derived using market data (direct sales comparison)
approach where the value of the land is based on sales and listings of comparable
properties registered within the vicinity. The market data approach relies on the
comparison of recent sale transactions or offerings of similar properties which have
occurred and/ or offered with close proximity to the subject property. The
technique of this approach requires adjustments to sales and listings by considering
the elements of comparison such as real property rights conveyed, conditions of sale,
market conditions, location, physical condition and amenities.
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(8]  Fair Value Meassrement of Machineries and Other Eguitment

The fair value of the transportation and other equipment was determined based on

the appraisal report of independent appraisers. Fair value was determined based on
the replacement cost of an asset with an equally satisfactorly substimte asset which

18 normally detived from the current acquisidon cost of a similar asset, new or used,
or of an equivalent productive capacity or service potental.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

—Note 2017 2016
Cash on hand and in banks 16.1 P 83119782 P 338,852805
Short-term placements L196906 _____ T137204

E_20J316688 P 345990009

Cash in banks generally eamn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short-term placements are made for varying periods from 60 to 90 days and eam effective
nterest ranging from 1.3% 1o 1.4% in 2017 and 0.5% to 1.4% in 2016.

In 2017 and 2016, interest income recognized from cash and cash equivalents amounted to
P0.46 million and P0.96 million, respectively, and is presented under Interest Income in
the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 8).

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

2017 2016
Receivables from customers:
Lease contracts receivables P 972,262,249 P1,025021 828
Residual value of leased properties 217,520,364 245,199,558
Deferred leasing income { 116,904,300) ( 128926,036)
Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment losses (__38.522,613) (__43.599.795)
1034355700 _1.097.695555
Loans receivable 724,990,443 830,413,120
Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment losses (—1L830,592) (___21457,131)
—T13,159.851 __ 808055989
Balance forwarded P1747.515.551 P1206651.544



Balance browght farward

Finance receivables:
Check di.a:crunﬁng
Invoice discountng
Unearned fnance income:
Check discounting
Invoice discounting
Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment losses

Restmmuctured recetvables

Besidual value of leased Pmp:.:m

under restructured receivables

Capitalized interest and other charges

Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment losses

Orther receivables:
Bales contracts recevable
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Oithers
Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment and losses

Lease contracts recervable are due in monthly installments with terms ranging from one to
five years. These are broken down as follows:

Lease contracts receivable:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five years

Residual value of leased propertes:

Drue within one year
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five years

2017 2016
P1,747,515,551 PLI0G6.651.544
647,357,145 677,021,680
708,281,076 648.219,122
( 5961423 ( 8,205,539
(  2L,73B,616) { 17,623,146
(—16.003.025) (__62.355.849)
_1,251,935,057 _1,237,056,268
161,322,995 174,648,469
23,741,543 32,148,932
( 12,932,336) (  14,061,935)

(—46,15L118) (___51.245,821)
— 125981084 141489645

11,203,467 13,584,572
7,270,770 407 055
2,568,740 3,631,937
3,494,535 2,698 446
(—675.893) (______675892)
— 801619 19646118
B3142.203. 5311 PBI304.843575

— 2007

P 54,885,498
__ 887,376,751
P_972.262.249

P 30,241,570
— 187,278,794
E_Z17.520.364

2016

P 180,259,819

— 044,762,009
ELU22.021.828

E_245.199.558
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2017 2016

Gross investment in lease contract receivable  P1189,782,613  P1,270,221,386
Less: Deferred leasing income (116904 300) (128926 .036)

MNet investment in lease contracts receivable PLOTARTRIN PL141.29533(0

The net investment in lease contracts receivable by contractual maturity dates are analyzed
as follows:

2017 2016
Due within one year P 107,414,197 P 173110456
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five years — 965,464,116 __ 968,184,894

FLO72.878.313 EL141.295350

As ar December 31, 2017 and 2016, residual value of leased properties amounting to
P241.26 million and P277.35 million, respectively, pertains to the estimated proceeds from
the disposals of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, which approximates the
amount of guaranty deposit paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease as presented in
Deposit on Lease Contracts in the statements of financial position. At the end of the lease
term, the lessee may apply this deposit as payment for the residual value of the property.

Lease contracts receivable eam annual interest at rates ranging from 7.00% to 15.00% in
2017 and 2016. The Company recognized interest income from lease contracts receivable
amounting to P72.60 million and P82.07 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is
presented as Leasing Income under Revenues in the statements of comprehensive income.

Loans receivable are secured commercial loans extended by the Company for financing
acquisitions of properties and equipment. Loans receivable eamn annual interest rates
ranging from 7.00% to 16.00% both in 2017 and 2016,

Loans receivable by contractual matarity dates is analyzed as follows:

2017 2016
Due within one year P 92555614 P 97859287
Due beyond one year bur not
beyond five years 632434820 732553833

E 124990443 P _830412,120

Restructured receivables earn annual interest at rates ranging from 8.00% to 12.50% and
7.00% to 15.00% in 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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The breakdown of the Company's interest income follows:

—DNoic 2017 2016
Finance receivables P 114397478 P 119,187,135
Loans receivable 80,995,788 92,026,905
Restructured receivables 7,805,014 10,808,361
Sales conrract receivable 1,585,571 1,190,805
Cash 1n banks 4 463,104 056 380

F 205246955 [E_224.169.593

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, non-performing loans (NPLs) not fully covered by
allowance for credit losses amounted to P525.80 million and P477.09 million, respectively.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, secured and unsecured WPLs follow:

2017 2016
Secured P 291,094,952 P 331,638,870
Unsecured __ 234709437 __ 145456052

E_525804.389 [P 470094920

Generally, NPLs refer to loans whose prineipal and,/or interest is unpaid for thirty days or
more after due date or after they have become past due in accordance with existing BSP
rules and regulations. This shall apply to loans payable in lump sum and loans payable in
quarterly, semi-annual, or annual installments, in which case, the total outstanding balance
thereof shall be considered non-performing,

In the case of receivables that are payable in monthly installments, the total outstanding
balance thereof shall be considered non-performing when three or more installments are
in arrears. In the case of receivables that are payable in weekly, or semi-monthly
nstallments, the rotal owtstanding balance thereof shall be considered non-performing at
the same time that they become past due in accordance with existing BSP regulations, ie.,
the entire outstanding balance of the receivable shall be considered as past due when the
total amount of arrearages reaches more than 10.00% of the total receivable balance.

A loan which is restructured shall be considered nw-pq:{n:ming except when as of
restructunng date:

(1)  with updated prncipal and interest payments; and,

(2) fully secured by real estate with loan value of up to 60.00% of the appraised value of
the real estate secunty and the insured improvements thereon, and such other first
class collaterals as may be deemed appropoate by the Monetary Board, Provided,
that a restructured loan, with or without capitalized interest, must be yielding a rate
of interest equal to or greater than the Company’s average cost of funds at the date
of restructuring, otherwise, it shall be considered non-performing,

The restoration to a performing loan shall only be effective after a satisfactory track record
of payments of the required amortizations of principal and/or interest has been established.



For this purpose, a satisfactory track record of payments of principal and/or interest shall
mean three consecutive payments of the required amortizations of principal and/or
interest have been made,

However, in the case of a restructured loan with capitalized interest but not fully secured
by zeal estate with loan value of up to 60.00% of the appraised value of the real estate
secunty and the msured improvements thereon or other first class collaterals, six
consecutive payments of the required amortizations of poncipal and/or interest must have
been made.

A restructured loan which has been restored to a performing loan status shall be
immediately considered non-performing in case of default of any poncipal or interest
payment.

A reconciliation of the allowance for eredit losses for loans and receivables by class
follows:

Leass
Cantraces Loans Finance Eestructured Orther
gl Heocivables, Beceivables  Eecetvables  Receiyahles  Hecejpyahies _ Toml
A funusery 1, 2017 F 43590 T P 45T 08 P 62055550 P S M58 P [ A U b LT
Losses (reverah) 15.2 022850 [ B, 11880 53,4008 068 2178514 . 42 550 fld
Weite-edf '!_..H.'ill.. (1 S0RS0) (. MRSGE T [ JT2GEHT) -  f &RRE )
Ar Dezemnbes 3, AT E35S2LE0 E_LLAMAST P OAOOLIS E _SLIGTIE P ETEARY PATLIAH)
Inifivadoal lirgremren 31,420,950 543117 52 EAT 45002017 . 147 868 BTE
et L al 1101683 2042 L 7 8 sha 2
E3ESTLELY E_MLESOEGr B IR0l PE_SLISLINN P GTEEYY PITAALE]
Giroes amonmnt of loans
nidrrdhually detenmancd
b e oo bedes
ssncasd crods bowesy EIE3E0068 E_SRTI064S PRII0AY EITRMOED P ___6TSEY PSRRI
A Janasy 1, 2076 POYRA2O00E P OLATIAETE P 4SMGA084 P ASSZRI98 P 7996 P 1M506.047
Léribis (rewomal) 152 23,5912 45T B 563 558 4,550,530 34455808 | 1233423] 131,972 567
Wete-off (. 15.9% AR : {__ 49.569.054) {_19.2% W3 £ {1 M5)
A2 Dieceenber 31, 2016 EASmTsY E _NANTIN P oGlaSSES) P OSLMSAN P A7SAYl PITRAN4R
Indrvidhaal [mpairmen P OHEE 1A 13,218,320 49,355 484 45 144 405 - 142,758 484
Cellective Impaimnent — Rl _ BIMAB02 1299036 2 _S90LAZX  AISADY  __SSSTANS

Ealinry E AL E GLSSSSS E JLJGCE31 B 67560 EATRIM4E

Lievn amorumt of loans

vubvichnlly defeomined

i b ampaired bedoon

deductrg asy indmdually

maacecd crodit losscs Eanieder P alilidds EMAIDIZ ELA0ST E__GISHDY EG33424180

With the foregoing level of allowance for credit losses, management believes that the
Company has sufficient allowance to cover significant losses that may be incurred from
the non-collection or non-realization of its loans and receivables.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Investment in a subsidiary pertains to investment in UFEC, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, with a carrying amount of P5,641,224 and P5,098,713 at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, which is accounted for at equity method.
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BSP has regulated the foreign exchange market which resulted to stringent regulations
affecting the business operations of foreign exchange corporations that led to the
suspension of the UFEC's commercial operations in 2004. UFEC had an initial plan to
terminate its corporate life on December 31, 2006. However, UFEC has decided o put
on hold its dissolution plans. The decision to resume UFEC's operation will depend
largely on the policy direction the regulators would take in the succeeding years.

The movements in the carrying amount of investment in a subsidiary as of December 31,
which is accounted for under the equity method, is shown below.

2017 2016

Cost BE___ 4025000 P 4023000
Accumulated share in net profit

Balance at beginning of the year 957,713 775,036

Share in net profit — 16800 182677

Balance at end of the year 1,125,724 957,713
Accumulated share in other

comprehensive income:
Balance at beginning of the year 116,000 185,000
Share in other comprehensive
mcome 374,500 | G000

Balance at end of the year 490,500 116,000

Carrying amount of investment P__ 5641204 P__ 5098713
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Company's investment properties include buildings and several parcels of land,
which are held for investment purposes only and not for sale within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period nor used in the Company’s daily operations. Real estate tax
on investment property for each year was recognized as a related expense in 2017 and
2016. There were no income recognized related to these assets in 2017 and 2016.

The carrying amounts of investment properties presented in the statements of financial
position a3 at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are shown below.

2017 2016
Cost P 105135054 P 75079516
Accumulated depreciation ( 117,847) .
Accumulated impairment (__13,646,624) | 15,044 094
Net carrying amount P_ 91370583 P 6003542
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment properties at the beginning and
end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below,

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of the year P 60035422 P 78319412
Additons 40,071,516 976,188
Depreciation ( 117,847) -
Disposals (—8.618,508) (___19.260.178)
Balance at end of the year E 21370583 P 60035422

The aggregate appraised values of the investment properties as of December 31, 2017
and 2016 are P144.80 million and P101.21 million, respectively. Other information about
the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the investment properties are
presented in MNote 6.3,

Fair values which are market values for land and building and related improvements and
reproduction cost for certain building and improvements have been determined based on
valuations made by in-house and independent professional appraisers. Valuations were
denved on the basis of recent sales of similar properties in the same area as the investment
properties and taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at the time the
valuations were made.

(rain on sale of investment properties amounted to P2.06 million and P3.22 million in
2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part of Gain on sale of assets acquired
under the Other Income account in the statements of comprehensive income

(see Note 15.1).

OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of:

—Note 2017 2016
Othes properties acquired — net 11.1 P 64487045 P 3B6T1816
Property and equipment - net 11.2 13,116,563 4,429,015
Prepaid expenses 8,140,818 5,206,098
Refundable deposits 779,767 779,767
Onhers 999,150 SB6.540

E_81523343 [E__49.673236
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111 Other Froperties Acquired

The movements of other properties acquired are presented below.

—Dote 2017 2016
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P 87,586,742 P 94991812
Addinons 64,930,484 8,718,000
Disposal (—62,078,379) (___16123.070)
Balance at the end of year __ 90.438.847 B7.586,742
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at the beginning of year 44,182,488 40,254,331
Depreciation during the year 152 18,112,237 15,245,185
Disposal (—3L049.324) (____11.317.028)
Balance at the end of year _ 21245401 44 182 488
Allowance for Impairment Losses
Balance at the beginning of year 4,732,438 5,813,231
Impairment duting the year - 171,800
Disposal (____ 26037) (___ 1252593)
Balance at the end of year : 4,706,401 4733438
Net Book Value E_64487.045 P__38671816

In 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized net gain and loss on foreclosure of other
properties acquired amountng to P41.43 million and P7.85 million, respectively, and
presented under Gain (loss) on foreclosure under the Other Income account in the
statements of comprehensive income (see Mote 15.1).

In addition, the Company incurred a loss on sale of other properties acquired amounting
to P14.11 million and P1.80 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part
of Gain (loss) on sale of assets acquired under the Other Income account in the
statemnents of comprehensive income (see Note 15.1).

The aggregate appraised values of other properties acquired as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 are P143.18 million and P77.75 million, respectively. Other information about the
fair value measurement and disclosures related to other properties acquired are presented
in MNote 6.3.
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11.2 FProperty and Egquipment

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated deprecianon and amortzanon of property
and equipment at the beginning and end of 2017 and 2016 are shown below and in the

succeeding page.
Famiture,
Fixtarcy
and ifics Trenspariation
— Eguipment = __Equipment .Imu_. —Xaml
Diecermiber 31, 2017
Coar F TEN04TE P 34161 P EIT04NI P 1,247 050
Accurrdered depriecanes
and emosiranon (— S a008) ) (o ZRREN) (___  JIOA4Y (_ BAMO4T)
et carnng ainse E L8950 E___ASTIM B LSMIT B LAIESE
Diecermber 11, 2006
Cour P EEITIOE P 444381 P 201818 P 10,168,756
Accumulited deprecanon
and EmoenEEnDn [ IEO0IREY LST0049Y 170800 ( STA0.7411
Mer casrying areean b AR B ATIRTE P BN B 448015
Jamesmry 1, 2006
Cosr B 00454 P 4T P 22ER TP BA25, 111
Accomulsted deperecaton

anid LT B

ber carrping armount

NS 5. eLi L QK 7. ] — L — L L
o R LI x - . R . £ R3]

A reconciliagon of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning and
end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

Bradunce st Jumssry 1, 2077

Furninire,
Finrures
nd Office Trumsporation

—M—W——W——M—

net of sccumulased depeeciation

P

e W IR

Dprecation
charges for the yeur

Bafarscr st Decamber 31, 2007
md’mﬂl.hud-drplrmm

Bafnon st Jamsry 1, 20146
vt of acnumiaced

P 1EM98 P ITTETRL P nyg P 4429015
Limam 23173 BT A0 12,514, 10
: [ 1,250,008 | - { 1,250,000 )

[ LWa BT [ AEARAM) (_ S41040% (__ JSTESL)

EAMiaiia E___A1502s B L88IT  E__LLMASE

el smarkration P imAew P pEgez P HEE P 3694 518
Additicrs 1045 2776 058 - 204 501
Uraponal [ SMOATY 2 493 ) - { G053 Y
chizged for the yeas S A O P . .- 1 1.7 [ O N )
Halmmicr at Diecombez 31, 2014

ot of scturmshecd deprocstion

il asnOrEEation P larsnm P __ UM BB B 4430

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the gross carrying amount of the Company's
fully-depreciated property and equipment that are stll in use is P7,195,351 million and
P3,145,273 million, respectively.
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This account consists of borrowings from:
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2017 2016

Bank of Commerce P 507,032,823 282,920,395
Robinsons Bank 182,500,000 -

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporadon 150,000,000 106,000,000
Bank of the Philippine Islands 140,000,000 90,000,000
Easrwest Bank 137,083,334 431,666,667
Philippine National Bank 100,000,000 200,000,000
Banco De Oro 100,000,000 100,000,000
China Bank Savings & 150,000,000
Asia United Bank - 140,000,000
Maybank & 100,000,000
Philippine Business Bank - 50,000,000
Philippine Bank of Communications i 30,000,000

FL316.616.157 EL674.587.062

Bills payable, which are unsecured in nature, have contractual maturities ranging from one
month to three years.

The Company pays annual interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 5.50% in 2017 and 4.00%
to 2.50% n 2016. Interest expense from bills payable amounted to P74.40 million and
P97.77 mullion in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as Interest Expense in the
statements of comprehensive income, Interest which remained unpaid as of

December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P2.17 million and P3.77 million, respectively,
and is presented as Accrued interest on bills payable under the Accounts Payables and
Orther Liabilities account in the statements of financial position (see Note 13).

The maturity profile of bills payable is presented below.

2017 2016
Within one year P1,101,060,601 P1.414170395
Beyond one year 215,555,556 __ 260,416,667

EL316616157 ELG74.587.062
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14.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

This aceount consists of the following as of December 31:

Motes 2017 2016
Dividends payable P 200,000,000 P -
Accounts payable 71,578,575 B8 835599
Accrued taxes and licenses 4,398,736 3,623,945
Accrued interest on bills payable 12 2,174,272 3,772,291
Withhaolding tax payable 1,750,197 2,327,917
Accrued other expenses 163 1908570 2485 350

E_28LRI0350 E_101.045.002

Accounts payable consists of unreleased checks to suppliers of properties leased by
borrowers and advances from customers received upon availment of a loan or lease
contract which are used for notasial fees, appraisal fees, registration fees and other
related expenses.

Accrued other expenses include management and other professional fees, rent and other
expenses.

EQUITY
14.1 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company’s capital management objectives are to provide an adequate return to the
stockholders and to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern by
prcing products and services commensurately with the level of nsk.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented
in the statements of fnancial posidon. Capital for the reporting pedods under review is

summanzed as follows:

2017 2016
Total habilities P1,851,697,548 P2,071351,443
Total equity —1.601,991,693  _1.741,950,967
Debt-to-equity ratio L6100 112100

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,
1.¢., equity and total liabilities. The Company manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the nsk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debr
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The Company is subject to an externally imposed capital requirement of a minimum of
P10.00 pullion paid-up capital [see Note 18.1(a)]. The Company’s paid-up capital as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P775.00 million, which amount 15 in excess of
the externally imposed capital requirement (see Note 14.2).
Capital stock as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of:
— Shares ~ __Amount
Common shares — P100 par value
Authonzed - 10,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 7,750,000 P 775,000,000

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has only one stockholder owning 100
or more shares of the Company's capital stock.

14.3 Rerained Earnings

On December 15, 2017, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting
to P200,000,000 out of unappropriated retained earnings, which is payable to all
stockholders of record as of December 31, 2017.

On December 15, 2017, the BOD approved the appropriation of P100,000,000 from the
Company’s eamnings for stock dividend declaration purposes, and to address the excess
projected unappropriated retained earnings over paid up capital

OTHER INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES

151 Other Income

This account consists of:

MNotes 2017 2016

Gain on sale of recetvables 16.2 P 428605947 P 120,807,837

Gain on foreclosure 11.1 41,429,393 7,854,797

Service charges and penalties 13,398,435 13,762,080
Gain (loss) on sale of

assets acquired 10,111 12,046,983) 1,421,755

Miscellaneous — 10436882 2237949

E_26078.674 [E_14R084.418
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152 Other Operating Expenses
The details of other operating expenses are shown below.

Motes 2017 2016

Impairment and credit

losses 810,111 P 63,856,934 P 132392872
Salanies and

employee benefits 43,790,041 34,503,243
Taxes and licenses 18.2, 22.1(e) 31,911,675 38,999,090
Deepreciation

and amortization 10,11.1,11.2 20,806,645 16,548,156
Lm,gﬂl:lmi and others

legal expenses 12,449,149 15,382,961
Occupancy 16.3, 20.1 7,676,894 5,725,327
Communication

and utilities 2,647,934 2,610,320
Management and

professional fees 1,239,839 2,220 344
Representation and

entertainment 02,180 147,681
Miscellaneous expense 4238841 4074 803

F_188710.132 P 252613797

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company, in the normal course of business, has various transactions with the patent
bank, and key management personnel which consist mainly of deposit arrangements, loans
and advances, short-teem borrowings, and management service agreements.

The amounts of these transactions and outstanding balances as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are presented below.

207 2016,
Amountef  Owtstanding  Amoun: of Crorstanding

Parent Bank
Cash in bank 16.1 P 266,777,944 P 63584966 P 416867565 P 3303462910
Sale of recetvables 162 42,560,947 - 120,807 BY7 .
Clecupancy cost 163 BED, 748 . 1,073,874

Eey Management Persomnel
Compensaton 16.4 15,675,671 . 17,161,077

6.1 Cash in Bank

The Company’s cash in banks include deposit account with the Parent Bank, which
generally earn interest based on the daily bank deposit rates (see Note 7).
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16.2 Sale of Receivables

In 2017 and 2016, the Company sold lease contract receivables and other loan receivables
on 2 without recourse basis amounting to P727.06 million and P1,744.98 million,
respectively, to the Parent Bank. The recognized gain on such sale amounted to

P42.86 million and P120.81 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as
Gain on sale of recetvables under Other Income account in the statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 15.1),

16.3 Lease Agreement

The Company has existing agreement with the Parent Bank for the lease of its office space
which are renewable every two to three years at the Company’s option. Under the terms
of the lease agreement, the Company is required to pay rentals equivalent to a fixed rate
per square meter occupied,

Rental expenses are shown as part of Occupancy under Other Operating Expenses in the
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 15.2) and the unpaid rentals as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are presented as part of Accrued other expenses under
Accounts Payables and Other Liabilities account in the statements of financial position
{see Note 13).

16.4 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Salaries and other benefits received by key management persannel is broken down as
follows:

2017 2016
Salaries P 15228321 P 12398911
Others short-term benefits 447,350 4,762,166

F_15675.671 E__17.161.077

TAXES

The components of tax expense as reported in the statements of comprehensive income
for the years ended Diecember 31 are as follows:

2017 2016
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate
income tax (RCIT) P 33109849 P 34754254
Final tax at 20% 92.681 192078
33,202,530 34,945,332

Deferred tax expense relating
to orgination and reversal of

temporary differences —18.117.363 14,361,471
E_SL312.893 E__42.307.803
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax
expense reported in profit or loss section of the statements of comprehensive income

follows:
2017 2016

Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 33205836 P 312383537
Adjustment for income subjected to

lower income tax rates ( 46,310) | 149,642)
Tax effects of:

Net deferred tax adjustments 17,030,952 18,124,225

Non-deductble interest

and other expense 1,089,818 149,486
Non-taxable income ( 50.403) 24,803

B_S51319893 P _42.307803
The net deferred tax assets relate to the following as of December 31:

Statements of
Swatements of Financial Posiion  Comprehensive Income
27 206 — T 2016
Dieferred tax assets:
Allowsnce for impairment P20 P &M P 227237 (P 12084974
Accumulated depreciabon cn
BV ERLMENT pEOPErtes and
ather propertes scquired 6,408,975 13,532,110 5B33,138 | 1,155,811
Accrued CEpCOiicE C 1632369 16528 | TH431)
Deferred tux labalites
'I.Jnu'ﬂli.:ﬂl.ﬁ.i: on
forecknsed aseeix { 12,420, 818) | 2,556,439 10,072,579 4. T75 810
Lesss incoanss differential
betwesn fimence gnd
opcrating lease method (__26534.974) (_ 29217891) (__6E2917) _ Z2H09ETT
Dieferred tax assets — et E_BSHLNE  E__ALGGLAS3
Dieferred iy cxpense LM ST T Bk

The Company is subject to the minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), which is ;
computed at 2% of gross income, as defined under tax regulations or RCIT, whichever 15
higher. No MCIT was reported in 2017 and 2016 as the RCIT was higher than MCIT in

both years.

In 2017 and 2016, the Company claimed itemized deductions in compunng for income tax

due,

COMPLIANCE WITH REPUBLIC ACT NO. 8556, THE FINANCING
COMPANY ACT OF 1998

The Company, which was organized for the purpose of extending credit facilines to
consumers by direct lending, is governed by the R.A. No. B556. Presented in the
succeeding page are the significant provisions under B.A. No, 8556 that are applicable to
the Company.
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18.1 Form of Organization

Under Section 2 of R-A. No. 8556, financing companies shall be organized in a form of
stock corporation in accordance with the provisions of the Code, subject to the following:

fal  As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of 2
universal bank incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines.

A minimum paid-up capital of P10,000,000 for financing companies located in
Metro Manila and other 1st class cities and additional capital of P1,000,000 for
branches established in Metro Manila, P500,000 for branches in other classes of
cities and P250,000 for branches established in municipalities. The Company is in
compliance with the minimum paid-up capital requirement as of December 31, 2017
and 2016 (see Note 14.2).

&)  The corporate name of financing companies shall contain the term “financing
company” or other title or word(s) descriptive of its operations and activities as a
financing company (seec Note 1).

15.2 Licensing Fees

Under Secuon 8 of R.A. No. 8556, an annual fee amounting to P10,000 for offices in
Metro Manila shall be charged and the same shall be paid not later than 45 days before the
anniversary date of the Cerificate of Authority to Operate as a Financing Company and
for as long as its license to operate is in effect.

The Company’s licensing fees for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
presented as part of Taxes and licenses under the Other Operating Expenses account in
the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 15.2).

158.3 Loans and [ovestments
The following are the provisions under Section 9 of the R.A. No. B556:

fa)  The total investment of a financing company in real estate and in shares of stock in a
real estate development corporation and other real estate based projects shall not at
any time exceed 25% of its net worth.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has no investment in real estate.

&  More than 50% of the funds of a financing company shall be used or invested in
hnancing company activities; provided, that in the computation of the amount of
funds used or invested in financing company activitics, investments in government
secunties with maturity not more than one year and special savings deposits shall be
taken into consideration.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company obtained loans for
working capital purposes (see Note 12).

fc)  The total credit that a financing company may extend to its directors, officers and
stockholders shall not exceed 15% of its net worth,



= mm o mm mm em emm e e e e e e S M b B G G G G Gl

19.

fel)

(&)

-dd-

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has no outstanding loans
receivables from its directors, officers, stockholders and other related parties.

The total credit that a financing company may extend to any person, company,
corporation or firm shall not exceed 30% of its net worth.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not extend any credit that
exceeded 30% of its net worth.

Unless collected, interest income shall not be recognized on loans receivables that
remain outstanding beyond maturity dates.

The Company is in compliance of this provision as it recognizes interest income
eamed from loan date up to its maturity and the Company ceases to recognize
interest in case when the loan becomes past due.

SELECTED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following are some of the financial performance indicators of the Company:

2017 2016
Current ratio 125%; 129%;
Debt-to-equity rado 116% 119%
Retumn on equity 4% 3%
Return on assets 2% 1%
Met interest mugm 6% 6%
Loans-to-assets 91% B7%
CAR 36% 37%

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

20.1 Operating Lease Commitments — Company as Lessee

The Company is & lessee under vanious operating leases covering certain warehouse and
office spaces. These leases have terms of one to five years, with renewsl options. Rent
expense ansing from these leases amounted to P7.68 million and P5.73 million in 2017
and 20116, respectively, which are presented as Occopancy under Other Operating
Expenses account in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 15.2).

Future minimum rental payments under these operating lease contracts as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P 6668478 P 383189
More than one year but
less than five years 15 400,000 3,510,726

E_ 22068478 P 7342622
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20.2 Legal Claims and Other Commitments

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there are pending claims and legal actions against
or in favor of the Company arising from the normal course of business. In addition,
there are other commitments and eontingencies that arise in the normal eourse of the
Company's operations which are not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. Management is of the opinion that, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
losses, if any, that may arise from all of the above commitments and contingencies will
not have a matenal effect on the Company's Anancial statements.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Presented below is the reconciliation of the Company's liabilities arising from financing
actvities, which includes both cash and non-cash changes.

Bills Drividends
Fayahle Payahic
— (Noweld)  _{Mows 13 and 14) Tatal

Balance as of January 1, 2017 P 1574587062 P . P 1,674 58T D62
Cash flews from Bnancng sctivitics

Procesds Brom svailments of

bulls payahle 1,825 62 515 - 1 B35 632545
Repayment of bils payable i 2183,503,420 ) . i 2B 503 450
Dividends declared - 200 000 (00 —_ 200000000

Balance as of December 31, 2017 E_LAGEIGLT B 200000000 P L3l6616157

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Presented below and in the succeeding pages is the supplementary information which is
required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) under its existing revenue regulations to
be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. This supplementary information
is not a required disclosure under PFRS.

221 Requirements Under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or acerued during the taxable year
ended December 31, 2017 are presented as follows:

(a)  Gross Receipts Tax

In hew of the value-added tax, the Company is subject to the gross receipts tax
(GRT) imposed on all banks and non-bank financial intermediaries performing
quasi-banking functions pursuant to Section 121 of the Tax Code, as amended.
Total GRT reported as a component of the Taxes and licenses under Other
Operaung Expenses account [see Note 22.1()] is broken down in the succeeding
page-
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___ Taxable Transactions Tax Base — GET

Royalues, rentals of property, (real

or personal), profits from exchange

and all other gross income - 7% P 58,169,816 P 4,071,887
Interest, commissions and discounts

from lending activites with maturity

pencd of five years or less — 5% 290,265,101 14,513,255
Interest, commissions and discounts

from lending actvities with maturity

petiod of more than 5 years — 1% 510,112 5,103
All other items treated as

gross income — 5% 438359 21908

E_ 349383388 EB__18.612.153
(B)  Escise Tax

The Company did not pay exeise tax in 2017 since it did not have any transactions
which are subject to excise tax.

fe)  Taxes on Importation

The Company did not pay any customs’ duties and tariff fees to the Bureau of
Customs since it did not have any importations during the year.

(d)  Docwmentary Stamp Tae (DST)

For the year ended December 31, 2017, DST paid and accrued amounting to
PB,533,212 refers to original issue of debt instruments and shares of stocks. The
amount of DST paid and recognized during the year is recorded as part of Taxes and
licenses under Other Operating Expenses account in 2017 statement of
comprehensive income [see Note 22.1(e)].

{e)  Taxes and Licenses

The details of Taxes and licenses under Other Operating Expenses account in 2017
are as follows (see Note 15.2):

—Diotes
GRT 22.1(a) P 18,612,153
Documentary stamps 22.1(d) 8,533,212
Frnge benefit tax 3,794,111
Oithers 2199
15.2 B__2L911675

() Withbolding Taxer

The Company paid expanded withholding tax amounting to P11,788,249 for the year
ended December 31, 2017. The Company did not have any transaction subject to
final and compensation withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2017
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Deficiency Tewxe Assessmens and Tax Cases

As of December 31, 2017, the Company does not have any final deficiency tax
assessments from the BIR or tax cases outstanding or pending in courts or bodies
outside of the BIR in any of the open taxable years.

22.2 Regquirements Under RR No. 19-2011

RR No. 19-2011 requires schedules of taxable revenues and other non-operating income,
costs of services, itemized deductions and other significant tax information to be
disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

The amounts of taxable revenues and income, and deductible costs and expenses
presented below and in the succeeding page are based on relevant tax regulations issued
by the BIR; hence, may not be the same as the amounts reflected in the 2017 statement of
comprehensive income which are based on PFRS.

fal  Taxabie Bevennes

The Company's taxable revenues subject to the regular tax rate for the year ended
December 31, 2017 comprises the following:

Rental income P 451366827
Interest income 204783851
P__ 656,150,678

(b)  Deductible Cost of Services

Deductible direct expenses for the year ended December 31, 2017 comprise the
following:

Depreciation P 362916912
Salaties, wages and benefits 27,587,726
Interest expense — 12072504

P__462,577,042

fe}  Taxabie Non-gperating and Other Income

The details of taxable non-operating and other income in 2017, which are subject to
regular tax rate are shown below,

Gain on sale of receivables » 42,860,947
Service charges and penalty fees 13,398,435
Gain on repossession _ 10436882

E___ 66,696,264
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(d)  ltermized Dedustions

The amounts of itemized deductions at regular tax rate for the year ended
December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Wnite-off of long outstanding receivables P 48,786,792
Taxes and licenses 31.911,675
Loss on sale of assets acquired 22223 490
Employee benefits 16,202,315
Legal expenses 12,449,149
Rental 6,532,762
Depreciation and amortization 2,576,560
Security services 1,472,928
Professional fees 1,239 830
Director’s fees 1,097 400
Communication, light and water 1,026,506
Transportation and travel 574,375
Office supplies 433,087
Advertsing and promotions 323,503
Fuel and oil 326,719
Insurance 220,444
Commissions 211,076
Repairs and maintenance — materials /supplies 174,356
Representaton and entertainment 92,180
Miscellaneous 2,028,581

P_149.903.737
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Report of Independent Auditors 2h Foar,Towar
to Accompany Supplementary o6 :‘ﬁlg-mnuuu
Information Required by the Philippines

T +43 2 788 2208

Securities and Exchange
Commission Filed Separately from
the Basic Financial Statements

Tha Board of Directors

UCPE Leasing and Finance Corporation

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank)
14th Floor, UCPE Buikding

7807 Makati Avenue, Makati City

Wie have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements
of UCPB Leasing and Finance Corporation (the Company) for the year ended December 31,
2017, on which we have rendered cur report dated April 10, 2018, Our audit was made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standands and Interpretations Adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Council as of
December 31, 2017 is presented for purposes of additional analysis in compliance with the
reguirements undar the Securibes Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards. Such supplementary information s the responsibility of management
The supplementary information has been subjectad to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairy stated in all material respects
in retation ko the basic financial statements taken as a whole

PUNONGEAYAN & ARAULLO

-~

By: Iito L. Nanola
Fa r

CPA Reg. No. 0090741
TIN 108-228-427
FTR Mo. BE160185, January 3, 2018, Makafi City
SEC Group & Accreditation
Partner - Mo. 0385-AR-3 (until May 18, 2018)
Firm - Mo. 0002-FR-5 [until Mas, 26, 2021)
BIR AN 0B-002511-18-2018 {until Jan. 25, 2021)
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2018)

April 10, 2018
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